Public Document Pack

Argyll and Bute Council Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid

Customer Services Executive Director: Douglas Hendry



Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604435 DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD e.mail –douglas.hendry@argyll-bute.gov.uk

27 June 2012

SUPPLEMENTARY PACK 1 COUNCIL MEETING – THURSDAY 28 JUNE 2012 – 11.00AM

I enclose herewith items below which were marked copy to follow on the Agenda for the above meeting.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director - Customer Services

ITEMS

- 3. MINUTES
- (b) Special Committee for Older Peoples Services and Learning Disability Services - 22 June 2012 (Pages 1 - 4)
 - 8. SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE PROGRAMME
 Report by Executive Director Customer Services (Pages 5 12)

E1 15. RECOMMENDATION FROM SPECIAL COMMITTEE FOR OLDER PEOPLE'S SERVICES

Extract from Special Committee for Older People's Services (Pages 13 - 60)

The Council will be asked to pass a resolution in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for items of business with an "E" on the grounds that it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in the appropriate paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 7a to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The appropriate paragraphs are:-

E1 Paragraph 1 Information relating to a particular employee, former employee or applicant to become an employee of, or a particular office-holder, former office-holder or applicant to become an office-holder under the authority.

Paragraph 9 Any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority in the course of negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal of property or the supply of goods or services.

COUNCIL

ALL MEMBERS

Contact: Sandra McGlynn Tel: 01546 604401

MINUTES of MEETING of SPECIAL COMMITTEE FOR OLDER PEOPLE'S SERVICES AND LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES held in the COMMITTEE ROOM 1, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 22 JUNE 2012

Present: Councillor Roderick McCuish (Chair)

Councillor Anne Horn Councillor Dick Walsh

Councillor James Robb

Also Present: Councillor Mary-Jean Devon

Attending: Sally Loudon, Chief Executive

Cleland Sneddon, Executive Director - Community Services

Jim Robb, Head of Adult Care

Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance

Anna MacColl-Smith, Service Commissioning Manager

Rosie Lawrence, Link Officer, Care Inspectorate

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were intimated from Councillors Louise Glen-Lee, Ellen Morton and John Semple.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None declared.

3. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Special Committee for Older People's Services and Learning Disability Services of 23 February 2012 were approved as a correct record.

The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for the following 4 items of business on the grounds that they were likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 8 and 9; 8 and 9; 11; and 1 and 9 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

It was agreed that Rosie Lawrence, Link Officer for the Care Inspectorate, could observe the meeting.

It was agreed to consider the following 2 items together.

* 4. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND CONTRACT MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS - CARE AT HOME

The Home Care service is provided to vulnerable individuals, predominantly by lone workers, in the home environment and as a result has always been considered a higher risk service requiring robust monitoring both by Community Services and Procurement and Commissioning. Consideration was given to a report regarding the

creation of Home Care Procurement Managers to supplement the role of the Care Inspectorate and the Council's Procurement and Commissioning Team to assist in achieving the robust monitoring of the higher risk service.

Decision

Agreed to recommend to the Council:-

- 1. that the contents of the report be noted;
- 2. that the Contract Monitoring Framework as detailed in the report be agreed; and
- the creation of Home Care Procurement Managers to ensure capacity to manage and monitor the home care hours provided by the Council and the independent sector.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Community Services dated June 2012, submitted)

* 5. HOME CARE SERVICES TENDER REVIEW

A report advising on the outcome of the tender exercise for Home Care Services which concluded at the beginning of May 2012 was considered.

Decision

- 1. Noted the analysis of tender responses set out in paragraph 3.2 of the report;
- 2. Noted the updated financial position of the service set out in paragraphs 3.4 to 3.8 of the report;
- 3. Agreed to recommend to the Council that lots 4, 8, 9 and 10 detailed at appendix 5 attached to the report be externalised in accordance with the tender results and paragraphs 3.9 and 3.10 of the report and that the remaining lots be retained in house or with existing external providers;
- Agreed to recommend to the Council that the Executive Director Community Services be instructed to progress with Voluntary Redundancy or TUPE arrangements in the areas subject to externalisation in compliance with the Council's agreed policy on Voluntary Redundancy; and
- Agreed to instruct the Executive Director Community Services to pull together more detailed financial models associated with the recommendations of the Special Committee for presentation to the full Council at its meeting 28 June 2012.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Community Services dated June 2012, submitted)

6. REVIEW OF CONDITIONS OF SERVICE - DAY SERVICES AND DUNAROS CARE HOME

At its meeting on 23 February 2012, the Committee agreed that the Head of Adult Care would engage with staff representatives/Trade Unions to agree a detailed set of principles that will underpin the changes to current contracted terms and conditions to deliver the required flexibility of service specification. A report advising on progress with this was considered.

Decision

Agreed the recommendations detailed in the report.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Community Services dated June 2012, submitted)

7. SERVICE REVIEW - MENTAL HEALTH

Consideration was given to a report advising that the Service Review Team, within the Year Three Service Review, identified the need to consider the future needs of adults who require support.

Decision

Agreed the recommendations detailed in the report.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Community Services dated June 2012 submitted)

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To be determined at a later date.

It was agreed that in future this Committee will be known as the Special Committee for Adult Services.

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Community Services Customer Services **Council Meeting**

28th June 2012

Scotland's Schools for the Future Update on Campbeltown and Dunoon Schools Projects

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides members with an update on the Campbeltown and Dunoon schools projects and outlines proposals for next steps.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

- 2.1 It is recommended that Members:
 - a) Note the current position.
 - b) Agree officers take forward the Campbeltown Grammar School project in accordance with the process set out in Paragraphs 3.8 and 3.9 of this report.
 - c) Determine whether to:
 - 1. Pursue the provision of a new Dunoon Area Shared Primary Campus on the basis of the business case previously agreed; or
 - 2. (a) review whether there are other options that may be preferred in regard to the new build, refurbishment, amalgamation or otherwise of the current Dunoon, St Mun's and Kirn Primary Schools, as set out in paragraphs 3.14 to 3.18 of this report; and
 - (b) take forward the review of the project governance arrangements, and liaise with the SFT and Scottish Government, as set out in paragraphs 3.20 to 3.25 of this report.

3.0 DETAIL

Project Background

3.1 The Council has previously approved outline business cases for the establishment of a new Campbeltown Grammar and Dunoon Area Primary Joint Campus (to replace the existing buildings housing each of St Mun's Primary, Kirn Primary and Dunoon Primary schools and

- Clyde Cottage Nursery) on the basis that these would be Capital funded projects.
- 3.2 The Scottish Government on 22 March 2011 advised the Council that funding awarded from the "Scotland's Schools for the Future" project (SSF) for the proposed new school facilities at Campbeltown Grammar and Dunoon Area Primary Joint Campus is now to be provided on a revenue basis. They have set out the key conditions and guidance for procuring bodies receiving revenue finance and these have been accepted by the Council.
- 3.3 The Scottish Futures Trust (SFT), on behalf of the Scottish Government, have confirmed that the projects for the proposed improved school facilities will be procured through the hub Design, Build, Finance and Maintain (DBFM) model.

Campbeltown Grammar School

- 3.4 The agreed business case was based on the proposal to replace the existing Campbeltown Grammar secondary school with a new build facility.
- 3.5 Work has been undertaken on the selection of a long list of sites for the new grammar school. 11 potential sites have been identified. The intention is to develop a site options appraisal process that will identify the optimum site having regard to a number of factors which may include: Educational benefit; Community Access; Synergies with the Council's CHORD objectives; Affordability relating to the potential costs associated with each site and; Deliverability taking into account the complexity of delivering the project on any given site. A process has been undertaken to ingather information in relation to all of the sites. This process has included liaison with SEPA, Scottish Water and the HSE. The information is now being examined to assess how preferred sites might be shortlisted.
- 3.6 It is expected that the Council will wish to seek as broad and deep a view on any preferred sites as possible. Cambeltown Grammar School management have expressed a clear wish for the school to lead the process of public consultation with assistance from other Council staff. In this way the School would be, and be seen to be, the owners of and drivers in the process.
- 3.7 Work is underway on the compiling of the educational and technical brief for the new school. Feedback is being received from the evaluation of the recently completed "Try Before You Buy", open plan teaching area that was constructed in the top floor of the existing school building. In addition a "Champions Group" has been established to work with Pupils, Teachers, and others to establish the requirements of key stakeholder groups. This work is ongoing.

Next Steps

- 3.8 It is recommended that officers:
 - Develop the option appraisal process that will produce preferred site or sites;
 - Develop a consultation process, in liaison with Campbeltown Grammar School, in respect of the preferred site, or sites; and
 - Report to the Council on the proposed process in respect of the above.
- 3.9 It is further recommended that officers continue the development of the educational and technical brief for the new school in consultation with the existing Champions Group and Architecture and Design Scotland on the understanding that the progress of the development of this document will be reported to the Council.

Dunoon Area Shared Primary Campus

- 3.10 The agreed business case was based on the proposal for a new build primary school which brings together on one site, the Kirn, St Mun's and Dunoon Primary Schools along with the Clyde Cottage nursery.
- 3.11 Following approval of Initial and Outline Business cases, plans are advanced to a stage sufficient to allow a Planning Application (in principle) to be made for a shared campus school on the site of the existing Kirn primary school and adjacent council owned rugby pitch. The necessary statutory consultations under the Pre Application Consultation (PAC) process have been completed and the PAC report has been finalised. Further work however is needed to finalise proposals for compensatory measures to offset the loss of the existing grass rugby pitch to meet the requirements of sportscotland as a statutory consultee. This work would require a separate planning application to be made.
- 3.12 Following extensive consultations with staff, pupils, parents and specialist external agencies, including Architecture and Design Scotland, through the Champions Group process, a draft educational and technical brief for the new school is nearing completion.
- 3.13 The proposal has met with significant levels of opposition within the Dunoon community. In view of this, at the request of the Lead Councillor for Education and Lifelong Learning, Members are asked to determine whether they wish to pursue the provision of a new Dunoon Area Shared Primary Campus on the basis of continuing the process set out above. Alternatively, Members may wish to consider reviewing all other options to improve the school estate in Dunoon. In the event that Members agree to carry out a review this will be managed by Facility Services on

behalf of, and in liaison with, the Council's Education Service in terms of the process set out in paragraph 3.14.

Possible Scope of Review

- 3.14 The options for the future provision of primary education within Dunoon can be summarised as follows:
 - Refurbish 3 existing schools and Nursery Accommodation

Dunoon Primary

Kirn Primary

St Mun's Primary and Clyde Cottage Nursery

- Provide a new build school at Kirn replacing all 3 Schools and Nursery as per the current shared campus proposals
- Provide a new build school replacing all 3 Schools and Nursery as per the current shared campus proposals but on alternative sites (if such sites are currently available)
- Provide new build school replacing Dunoon Primary and Kirn Primary only on the Kirn site, or an alternative site if available, with a refurbishment of St Mun's.

Possible Review Process

If Members require that officers undertake the review it is recommended that it follows the process below:

- Assess current information including drawings and reports on the existing school buildings
- Commission/carry out in depth surveys as required to provide detailed information on the condition, suitability and sufficiency of the existing school buildings. This will include reports on the soundness of the existing structures and associated services.
- Provide outline plans to alter and adapt as required, the existing school buildings and associated external areas to meet the requirements of the Argyll and Bute Educational and Technical Brief and the requirements of the Governments "Building Better Schools: Investing in Scotland's Future Document.
- Provide estimated, costed solutions for all recommendations, both refurbishment and new build. This will include estimates of both capital and life cycle costs over a 30 year period.

- Set out the relative merits of all options using the primary criteria of:
 - 1. condition
 - 2. suitability
 - 3. sufficiency

This process would also have regard to a number of other measures including energy efficiency, running costs, and compliance with the Government's Vision and Aspirations for the School Estate. In addition all options must consider the likely availability of government funding.

- 3.15 Following development and agreement of the scope of the review, competitive fee bids will be obtained through a competitive tendering process managed by the councils Procurement team.
- 3.16 Whilst difficult to estimate the level of fee bids that will be obtained it is expected that the cost for this study would be in the range £25,000 to £50,000. Members are asked to note that no specific budgetary provision has been made for this work.
- 3.17 It is anticipated that fee bids could be obtained before the end of July. This would allow disruptive survey works to be undertaken during the schools' October break with the final report being made available before the end of the year.
- 3.18 Following completion and reporting to the Council on the results of any review process, it is expected that the Council will wish to carry out a public consultation exercise. Proposals on this will be reported to Members for their consideration. This will include a projection of the likely cost of the exercise as Members should note that no specific funding provision has been made for this at this point in time.
- 3.19 In the reporting of any review of the proposed schools for Dunoon, officers will also report on progress in relation to the new Campbeltown Grammar. These projects are currently considered by the Scottish Future's Trust to be a single project, for procurement purposes, and may have related interdependencies.

Review of Governance Arrangements

3.20 The Executive previously agreed governance arrangements for the project on 9 April 2012. To meet the key governance arrangements outlined in the key requirements and guidance, previously issued by the SFT, it was agreed that the Council constitute a special committee, consisting of nominated Members, with specific responsibility for the delivery of this project. The Special Committee would receive reports and recommendations from a Project Board, consisting of the members of the Special Committee along with nominated third parties. In turn the Project Board would receive reports and recommendations from a Project team comprising Council officers. These governance

- arrangements were in compliance with key requirements and guidance issued by the SFT.
- 3.21 This is a similar governance structure to that utilised in the Council's NPDO Project, a revenue funded project, and has been utilised in other Council Projects and is compliant with the key requirements and guidance.
- 3.22 As part of the review process the matter of the suitability of these governance arrangements will be considered and reported upon to Members.

Proposed Liaison with SFT and Scottish Government

- 3.23 To provide appropriate context of the relationship between both projects discussions will require to take place with the SFT and, possibly, the Scottish Government in relation to a number of matters to include the following:
 - How any alteration in the current proposal for Dunoon will affect the allocated funding from the Scottish Government. The view of the SFT is that any suggestion to alter the proposal will require specific approval from the Scottish Government.
 - The SFT will likely require to consider whether either of the projects would individually be of sufficient financial scope to be deliverable on their own as revenue funded projects.
 - Whether revenue funding would be suitable and / or available to complete a refurbishment project. The SFT's view is that not many revenue funded refurbishment projects have taken place to date.
 - The SFT's advice is that if the refurbishment projects were not deemed to be suitable for revenue funding, capital monies would then need to be identified. If the projects were required to be delivered through capital, the SFT have advised that they consider such funding may not become available to fund refurbishment projects until 2017/18 at the earliest.
 - How the key objectives of the Scotland's Schools for the Future programme will be achieved through a refurbishment route. A refurbishment option would have to demonstrate a clear business case that meets these objectives.
 - Whether the same funding will be available for a refurbishment option as for a new build. The SFT view is that, any funding for a refurbishment option is unlikely to be offered at the full m2 rate. Historically, a refurbishment option would be restricted to approximately two thirds of the new build option as, beyond this, the level of Value for Money would be guestioned.

3.24 In reporting to members on the results of any review process, officers will set out the advice received from the SFT as to the possible impact on Scottish Government funding in respect of the options considered.

Timescale for completion of the review

- 3.25 It is expected that the review will be completed by the end of 2012 and the conclusions of the review reported to the first available Council thereafter. In the meantime, officers would report any matters arising having a significant bearing upon the project to the Council.
- 3.26 It should be noted that design work on the Dunoon Primary Campus project has been suspended pending consideration of this report.

4.0 CONCLUSION

4.1 The recommendations provide a mechanism for a transparent and inclusive way forward for the implementation of both schools projects. In the case of the Dunoon Primary schools/ nursery the availability of an independent investigation into a range of refurbishment and new build options will inform an educated debate on the potential way forward.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

- 5.1 Policy Acceptance of this report may ultimately alter the policy previously agreed by the Council's Executive on 19 April 2012.
- 5.2 Financial The general financial impact of this report will be assessed as part of the review proposed in the report. At this point in time, the cost of the feasibility work is estimated at between £25,000 and £50,000 although additional financial provision will have to be made in due course for any future public consultation exercise.
- 5.3 Legal None at present.
- 5.4 HR None at present.
- 5.5 Equalities None at present.
- 5.6 Risk The main risks resulting from the report are set out in para 3.23 above.
- 5.7 Customer Service None at present

Executive Director of Community Services Executive Director of Customer Services

28 June 2012

For further information contact:

Malcolm MacFadyen, Head of Facility Services 01546 604412

Page 13
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Agenda Item 15

Document is Restricted

Document is Restricted

Document is Restricted

Document is Restricted